Public Document Pack

Notice of Meeting

District Planning

CO m m ittee documents for this meeting
Wednesday, 8 September 2021 at 6.30pm

IN Council Chamber Council Offices
Market Street Newbury

The Council will be live streaming its meetings.
This meeting will be streamed live here: https://mww.westberks.gov.uk/districtplanninglive

You can view all streamed Council meetings here:
https://mww.westberks.gov.uk/councilmeetingslive

if members of the public wish to attend the Planning Committee they can do so either remotely

or in person. Members of the public need to notify the Planning Team
(planningcommittee @westberks.gov.uk) by no later than 4.00pm on 7 September 2021 if they
wish to attend the Planning Committee.

Please note that due to the current Coronavirus restrictions there is a limit on the number of
people who can enter the Council Chamber. Remote attendance at the meeting is therefore

encouraged at this time.

Members Interests

Note: If you consider you may have an interest in any Planning Application included on
this agenda then please seek early advice from the appropriate officers.

Date of despatch of Agenda: Tuesday, 31 August 2021

FURTHER INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

Plans and photographs relating to the Planning Applications to be considered at the meeting
can be viewed by clicking on the link on the front page of the relevant report.

For further information about this Agenda, or to inspect any background documents
referred to in Part | reports, please contact the Planning Team on (01635) 519148
Email: planningcommittee @westberks.gov.uk



https://www.westberks.gov.uk/districtplanninglive
https://www.westberks.gov.uk/councilmeetingslive
mailto:planningcommittee@westberks.gov.uk
mailto:planningcommittee@westberks.gov.uk

Agenda - District Planning Committee to be held on Wednesday, 8 September 2021
(continued)

Further information, Planning Applications and Minutes are also available on the
Council’'s website at www.westberks.gov.uk

Any queries relating to the Committee should be directed to Jenny Legge on (01635) 503043 or
Email: jenny.legge @westberks.gov.uk

¥ West Berkshire



http://www.westberks.gov.uk/

Agenda - District Planning Committee to be held on Wednesday, 8 September 2021
(continued)

To: Councillors Phil Barnett, Dennis Benneyworth (Vice-Chairman), Hilary Cole,
Carolyne Culver, Alan Law (Chairman), Royce Longton, Ross Mackinnon,
Alan Macro, Graham Pask, Richard Somner and Tony Vickers

Substitutes: Councillors Adrian Abbs, Jeff Beck, Graham Bridgman, Jeremy Cottam,
Clive Hooker, Tony Linden, David Marsh, Steve Masters, Geoff Mayes and
Andy Moore

Agenda

Part | Page No.

1. Apologies
To receive apologies for inability to attend the meeting (if any).

2. Minutes 5-6
To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of this Committee
held on 4 May 2021.

3. Declarations of Interest
To remind Members of the need to record the existence and nature of any
personal, disclosable pecuniary or other registrable interests initems on the
agenda, in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct.

4, Schedule of Planning Applications
(Note: The Chairman, with the consent of the Committee, reserves the right
to alter the order of business on this agenda based on public interest and
participation in individual applications).

¥ West Berkshire



http://info.westberks.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=38477&p=0

Agenda - District Planning Committee to be held on Wednesday, 8 September 2021
(continued)

(1)  Application No. & Parish: 20/02402/REG3, Newbury Football Club, 7-64
Faraday Road, Newbury
Proposal: Creation of open space for public recreation
including demolition of former football ground
clubhouse; delivery of new parking spaces and
erection of timber bollards and new fencing

generally.

Location: Newbury Football Club, Faraday Road, Newbury,
RG14 2AD.

Applicant: West Berkshire Council.

Recommendation:  Referred by Western Area Planning Committee due
to the importance of the site and significance of the
proposals for potential further strategic development
in the London Road Industrial Estate area.

Sarah Clarke
Head of Legal and Strategic Support

If you require this information in a differentformat or translation, please contact
Stephen Chard on (01635) 519462.

¥ West Berkshire




Agenda ltem 2.
DRAFT

Note: These Minutes will remain DRAFT until approved at the next meeting of the Committee

DISTRICT PLANNING COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON
TUESDAY, 4 MAY 2021

Councillors Present: PhilBarnett, Dennis Benneyworth, Hilary Cole, Carolyne Culver,

Clive Hooker (Chairman), AlanLaw (Vice-Chairman), Royce Longton, Ross Mackinnon,
Alan Macro, Graham Pask and Tony Vickers

PART |

1. Election of Chairman

RESOLVED that Councillor Alan Law be elected Chairman of the District Planning
Committee for the 2021/22 Municipal Year.

2. Election of Vice-Chairman

RESOLVED that Councillor Dennis Benneyworth be elected Vice-Chairman of the
District Planning Committee for the 2021/22 Municipal Year.

CHAIRMAN e

Date of Sighature

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Agenda Iltem 4.(1)

ltem (1)

Application: 20/02402/REG3

Site Address: Newbury Football Club, Faraday Road, Newbury, RG14 2AD

Proposal: Creation of open space for public recreation including demolition of
former football ground clubhouse; delivery of new parking spaces and
erection of timber bollards and new fencing generally .

Applicant: West Berkshire Council

Reportto be District Planning Committee

considered by:

Date of Meeting: 08" September 2021

To view the plans and drawings relating to this application click the following link:
http://planning.westberks.gov.uk/rpp/index.asp?caseref=20/02402/REG3

Purpose of Report:

Recommended Action:

Reason for decision to be
taken:

Key background
documentation:

For the District Planning Committee to determine the planning
application.

Referred by Western Area Planning Committee due to the
importance of the site and significance of the proposals for
potential further strategic development in the London Road
Industrial Estate area.

The application is on Council owned land, which s part of a
wider West Berkshire Council strategic development. Once a
resolution has been made by the Distric Planning Committee,
the resolution will be passed on to the National Planning
Casework Unit to determine whther the application will be called
in by the Secretary of State.

Western Area Planning Committee Agenda Report of 21°' July
2021,the update report, and the minutes of that meeting, plus
the updated officer recommended conditions.

Key aims N/A

Portfolio Member Details

Name & Telephone No.:

Councillor Richard Somner

E-mail Address:

Richard.Somner@westberks.gov.uk

Contact Officer Details

Name:

Masie Masiiwa

Job Title:

Senior Planning Officer

West Berkshire Council

District Planning Committee 08" September 2021
Page


http://planning.westberks.gov.uk/rpp/index.asp?caseref=20/02402/REG3

Tel.No.: 01635 519497

E-mail Address: Masie.Masiiwa@westberks.gov.uk
Implications
Policy: The proposal is considered to accord with policies NPPF,

ADPP1, ADDP2, CS5, CS13, CS14, CS16, CS17, CS18 and CS19 of
the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026 (WBCS)

Financial: Should the application be approved and implemented, it will not be
liable to a CIL charge.

Personnel: N/A

Legal/Procurement: N/A

Property: West Berkshire Council are the landowner and the applicant.

Risk Management: N/A

Equalities Impact N/A

Assessment:

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

11

12

13

14

15

INTRODUCTION

On 21 July 2021, the Western Area Planning Committee (WAPC) considered the agenda
and update reports for this application, which seeks full planning permission to demolish the
football ground clubhouse, lavatory block and turnstiles at the Newbury Football Stadium,
Faraday Road, Newbury.

The final amended proposed site plan indicates that the application also seeks to create
temporary pay and display parking spaces on the cleared area and temporary pay and
display parking on existing areas of tarmac hard standing. Approximately 80 new parking
spaces are proposed on the cleared area.

In place of the old clubhouse and turnstiles there will be new timber bollards to prevent
unauthorised vehicles access to the immediately adjacent grass football pitch. The grass
pitch will be retained.

Proposal background: The Council submitted a planning application under
reference 19/00814/FUL (Creation of 4 x multi-use games areas with replacement gates and
new fencing; 8 x new floodlights (replacing existing 6 x floodlights). The application was
withdrawn following an objection from Sport England and after the Council adopted the West
Berkshire Council Playing Pitch Strategy in February 2020.

The proposals will not alter the size of the existing grass playing pitch. It is proposed that the
grass pitch will be maintained to provide a grass surface for general recreational sport and
where all members of the public will be welcome to its use on a first come first serve basis.
Appropriate signage and pedestrian route map will be erected adjacent to the grass pitch to
direct people to the public lavatories available at the Wharf, approximately 350 metres away
and accessible via Victoria Park. These facilities include male and female lavatories; one

West Berkshire Council District Planning Committee 08" September 2021

Page 8



mailto:Masie.Masiiwa@westberks.gov.uk

1.6

disabled unit; one parent and child room, nappy changing facilities and radar keys can be
made available for disabled access.

There are also two parallel applications on the same site submitted by the Newbury
Community Football Group. These applications are still under consideration and propose the
following:

a) A replacement of the existing clubhouse in conjunction with the construction of a new

spectator stand under an outline planning application reference 20/01530/OUT.

b) A renewal and expansion of the existing football pitch to form a new 3G main pitch and a

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.10

111

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

smaller 3G training / practice pitch under the full planning application
reference 20/01966/COMIND.

These two applications will be presented to the WAPC, when the outstanding planning
matters have been concluded.

The application site is known as the ‘Newbury Football Ground and is an existing
recreational facility covering approximately 1.5 hectares to the east of Newbury Town
Centre. The facilities comprises a single grass playing pitch, single storey clubhouse and up
until recently a spectator stand that has been dismantled and taken off site. The site contains
unused external flood lighting mounted on masts around the football pitch and the pitch is
enclosed by timber and chain link fencing of varying height.

To the north of the site is the London Road Industrial Estate with a variety of uses, to the
east there are landscaped areas including trees and allotments. There are residential
properties approximately 50 metres to the south-east beyond the Kennet and Avon Canal.
To the south of the site there are trees within grassed areas beyond which the southern edge
of the site falls within a designated Conservation Area. Further to the south are footpaths and
a Public Rights of Way (NEWB/28/7) beyond which is the Kennet and Avon Canal and the
River Kennet, which is a river designated in its entirety as a Site of Special Scientific Interest
(SSSI). To the west of the playing pitch is an existing car parking area. The existing vehicular
access into the site is through the industrial estate to the north.

The site falls within Flood Zones 2 and 3 according to Environment Agency Flood Mapping.

The football ground is also currently registered as an Asset of Community Value (ACV).

THE MAIN ISSUE OF LOSS OF THE CLUBHOUSE WITHOUT A REPLACEMENT

In this application the main issue is the loss of the clubhouse before the replacement facility
is made available for use.

Policy CS18 sets out that the district's green infrastructure (which includes outdoor sports
and leisure facilities) will be protected and enhanced, new developments will make provision
for high quality and multifunctional open spaces of an appropriate size and will also provide
links to the existing green infrastructure network.

The supporting text to policy CS18 recognises that the multi-functional nature of green
infrastructure in the District is important for many reasons. It contributes significantly to the
quality of life for residents, workers and visitors, in terms of both visual amenity and for sport
and recreation purposes.

The Newbury Vision 2026 and 2036 sets out the Council and community aspirations for the
future of Newbury. The document indicates support for the growth of recreational and
sporting facilities within Newbury and the preservation and enhancement of the district’'s
open space.

West Berkshire Council District Planning Committee 08" September 2021

Page



2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

212

2.13

3.1

3.2

Wider Regeneration Proposals for London Road Industrial Estate

It is recognised that the Council has aspirations for the wider regeneration of the London
Road Industrial Estate (in which the application site is located). However, this future
development can only be afforded limited weight at this stage.

In 2020, the Council adopted the West Berkshire Council Playing Pitch Strategy, which
amongst other matters addresses the anticipated future loss of the Faraday Road stadium
site.

The Council’s application outlines that the site at Faraday Road has not been in use for a few
years and that the last tenanted occupant of the football ground left in June 2018 when the
lease on the ground expired (three years ago). The lease had originally expired in June
2016 but was extended by mutual agreement for another two years.

The Council submitted a statement from the Council’s Leisure Service written by the Service
Director — Communities and Wellbeing (Mathew Pearce). The statement states that the
Council's Playing Pitch Strategy approved and adopted by the Council in February 2020
outlines the Council’s intention to relocate the pitch at Faraday Road. The statement further
states that the new Sports Hub at Monks Lane (Newbury Rugby Club) will provide
opportunities for clubs that previously played at Faraday Road to train and play matches and
that the Council's aim is to deliver the new Sports Hub by March 2022 subject to planning
approval. As an update to members, the new planning application has been submitted and is
going through the validation process.

Asset of Community Value

West Berkshire Council awarded Faraday Road Football Ground an Asset of Community
Value status (ACV). An ACV status is a material planning consideration when it comes to the
loss of the ACV as a community facility. The ACV designation’s overall objective is to provide
the community with a Community Right to Bid when the ACV is proposed for sale.

The non-statutory advice note for local authorities (October 2012) advises that local planning
authorities can consider whether listing as an ACV is a material planning consideration in
determining a planning application, taking into account all of the circumstances of the case.

The Council intends to make available to the public, on a temporary basis, the former football
ground grass pitch as a community leisure facility until the land is required for
redevelopment, subject to planning. This community leisure use is similar to the existing site.
Officers consider that there is no loss of the community asset at this stage. Whilst it is the
Council's intention to redevelop the site in the future, it is at that point that the loss of the
ACV on a permanent basis can be assessed and the Community Right to Bid can be
engaged.

Sport England (SE) were consulted as a listed statutory consultee within the Town and
Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015.

Sport England subsequently submitted a consultation response withdrawing their previous
objection. The full Sport England response is attached as an Appendix.

FIRE AT THE NEWBURY FOOTBALL GROUND

Since the last application was considered by the WAPC the clubhouse at Newbury Football
Club was partialy destroyed by fire.

Prior to the recent fire incident and as presented at the WAPC held on 21 July 2021, it was
presented to Committee Members that the Council’'s Property Services commissioned a full

West Berkshire Council District Planning Committee 08" September 2021

Page 10



condition survey of the clubhouse building in July 2018. The survey report was submitted
and it confirmed that the building could not be reasonably re-occupied without carrying out
£208,000 of immediate repairs and services upgrades. It is also stated that there were
Health and Safety concerns to the public associated with the vacant building through
previous trespass incidents and general condition of the building. It is further stated that the
repairs would have rendered the building beyond economic repair, with the building having
no immediate or future use in line with the Council’s future development plans for the site.

3.3 ltis noted that on 26" August 2021 the fire damaged building was in the process of being
demolished. In an email to the planning officer on 27t August 2021, the applicant confirmed
that the building was demolished on the advice of West Berkshire Building Control. The
applicant stated that both West Berkshire Building Control and the Health and Safety
Executive were consulted where the Health and Safety Executive confirmed that the Council
must take West Berkshire Building Control’s advice as to what constitutes a dangerous
structure. The applicant outlines that from a public safety point of view West Berkshie
Building Control advised that the building must be demolished.

3.4 Officers have amended some of the conditions that were recommended as pre-
commencement or pre-demolition conditions. These have been amended such that details
will be required after demolition. The exception is the Tree Protection Scheme condition,
which requires that details are submitted before any demolition can take place. The tree
protection scheme condition would be essential prior to demolition to ensure that the
demolition machinery does not damage the existing trees on the site during demolition. The
condition requiring the submission of a Precautionary Method Statement (Biodiversity) for the
demolition has now been removed, as the roof (potential to be accessed by protected
species) was damaged in the fire. The rest of the information required by condition can be
submitted after demolition. The updated schedule of conditions is included at Section 5.2 of
this report for Members’ reference.

3.5 The applicant has also amended the proposed site plan by removing the annotation on the
southern boundary of the site which indicated that the existing fence would be replaced by a
1.8 metre green palisade fence. The wording has been amended to show that the existing
fence will be replaced by Type A timber bollards as proposed elsewhere on the site.

3.6 Officers consider that the application is in keeping with the ground’s status as a playing field
and the Council's strategies to both enhance the London Road Estate and improve
recreational and sporting facilities and thereby health and wellbeing.

3.7 Officers consider that the proposal makes a significant contribution to the wider social
dimensions of sustainable development through the continued provision of a community
leisure facility. This provision is consistent with the existing leisure facility and this carries
significant weight in the planning balance. Officers have also considered the Council’s clear
plan for a replacement stadium facility which is supported by a written statement from
the Service Director — Communities and Wellbeing (Mathew Pearce) and Sport England’s
final consultation response outlining that Sport England has no objection. The site is
currently not in use, the development is for alternative sports and recreational provision.
Officers consider that the benefits of bringing the site back into a community use clearly
outweighs the continued non-use of the site.

3.8 The officer recommendation is to grant planning permission subject to conditions. If
Members are minded to approve the application, it will be referred to the National Planning
Casework Unit to determine if the planning application will be called in by the Secretary of
State for determination following a Third Party referral to the Secretary of State.

West Berkshire Council District Plli?nnin% i:ommittee 08" September 2021
age



4. CONCLUSION
4.1 Members of the WAPC resolved to refer the planning application to the District Planning
Committee due to the importance of the site and significance of the proposals for potential
further strategic development in the London Road Industrial Estate area.
5. UPDATED OFFICER RECOMMENDATION
51 ToDELEGATEto the Head of Development and Planning to GRANT PLANNING
PERMISSION subject to the updated schedule of conditions outlined below:
AND
Subject to a referral to the National Planning Casework Unit to determine if the planning
application will be called in by the Secretary of State following a Third Party referral to the
Secretary of State.
5.2 Schedule of Conditions
1. | Time Limit for commencement
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three
years from the date of this permission.
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).
2. | Approved plans
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved documents and plans:
Received on 26 October 2020:
e Pre demo audit
e Demolition Method and Risk Assessment
e Newbury Football Ground Demolition Works
e Condition Survey Report
¢ WBC Highways Pavement Construction Detall
¢ Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Statement
Received on 09 December 2020:
¢ Amended planning statement
Received on 08 July 2021:
e Applicant additional comment on building condition and health & safety
o Statement from West Berkshire Leisure on the replacement stadium facility
Received on 19 August 2021:
e Amended proposed site plan
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interest of proper planning.
West Berkshire Council District Planning Committee 08" September 2021

Page 12



3 Parking and turning in accordance with plans

The use shall not commence until the vehicle parking and turning spaces have been
completed in accordance with the approved plans (including any surfacing
arrangements and marking out). Thereafter the parking and turning space shall be
kept available for parking and manoeuvring (of private cars and/or private light
goods vehicles) at all times.

Reason: To ensure the development is provided with adequate parking facilities, in
order to reduce the likelihood of roadside parking that would adversely affect road
safety and the flow of traffic. This condition is applied in accordance with the
National Planning Policy Framework, Policy CS13 of the West Berkshire Core
Strategy 2006-2026, and Policy P1 of the Housing Site Allocations DPD 2006-2026.

4 Updated Ecological Appraisal

In the event that development has not commenced 3 years from the date of this
permission, no development shall take place until an updated Ecological Appraisal
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority,
together with any additional surveys recommended by the updated Ecological
Appraisal. The updated surveys shall be used to inform the mitigation measures for
this development.

Reason: If the development has not been commenced the ecological appraisal
should be updated. This is because the ecology of the site is likely to change over
time. All bat species, their breeding sites and resting places are fully protected, as
European Protected Species, under the Conservation of Species and Habitats
Regulations 2010 and the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. This condition is
applied in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, and Policy
CS17 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.

5 Drainage measures

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted flood risk
assessment (Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy, Newbury Football
Club, Stuart Michael Associates Limited, October 2020) and the following mitigation
measures it details:

¢ No increase in built footprint overall - built footprint to be reduced as per
section 2.13 in the Flood Risk Assessment.

Reason: To ensure that there is no loss in floodplain storage caused by the
proposed development. This condition is imposed in accordance with the National
Planning Policy Framework, Policy CS16 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy
(2006-2026), and Part 4 of Supplementary Planning Document Quality Design (June
2006).

6 Surface water drainage survey

Except for demolition and site clearance of the demolished material only, no
development shall commence until a surface water drainage survey is undertaken
and submitted for approval by the Local Planning Authority. The survey report shall
include:
a) a full investigation survey has been carried out of the existing surface water
drainage system up to the discharge point into the Thames Water network.
This investigation shall include jetting and CCTV camera survey of all

West Berkshire Council District Plli?nnin% gommittee 08" September 2021
age



pipework, channels and chambers to establish the route and condition of the
network as well as the testing to BRE365 for infiltration rates of any existing
soakaways within the Applicant’s land ownership. If soakaways do exist but
are not in a serviceable condition and cannot be brought back into a
serviceable condition to adequately deal with run-off volumes previously
directed to them when built, alternative SuDS measures shall be provided for
approval by the LLFA. If no soakaways are found to exist, then suitable new
SuDS measures shall be provided for approval by the LLFA to deal with an
equivalent of 75% nominal (unless an accurate existing percentage figure
can be established as an alternative) run-off volume from the existing
building roofs by way of mitigation for lack of previous SuDS measures in
order to reduce the flow burden on the downstream watercourse. The
volume of run-off shall be calculated for a 1 in 100 year storm event plus an
additional 40% for climate change;

b) a full topographic survey following demolition of any buildings and structures
of the area formerly occupied by buildings (including spectator stands) has
been carried out;

c) cross sections and construction details of the proposed car park have been
submitted for approval.

Reason: To ensure that surface water will be managed in a sustainable manner.
This condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy
Framework, Policy CS16 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026), and Part
4 of Supplementary Planning Document Quality Design (June 2006).

7 Programme of archaeological work

Except for demolition and site clearance of the demolished material only, no
development (including any site clearance and excavation) shall commence until the
applicant has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work in
accordance with a written scheme of investigation, which has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the development
shall incorporate and be undertaken in accordance with the approved statement.

Reason: To ensure that any significant archaeological remains that are found are
adequately recorded. This condition is applied in accordance with the National
Planning Policy Framework, Policies CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core
Strategy (2006-2026), and Supplementary Planning Document Quality Design (June
2006).

8 Scheme of landscaping

The use shall not commence until a detailed scheme of landscaping for the site is
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details
shall include schedules of trees and plants noting species, plant sizes and proposed
numbers/densities, an implementation programme and details of written
specifications including cultivation and other operations involving tree, shrub and
grass establishment.

The scheme shall ensure;

a) Completion of the approved landscape scheme within the first planting season
following completion of development.

b) Any trees shrubs or plants that die or become seriously damaged within five
years of this development shall be replaced in the following year by plants of the
same size and species.

West Berkshire Council District Planning Committee 08" September 2021
Page 14



Reason: To ensure the implementation of a satisfactory scheme of
landscaping. This condition is applied in accordance with the NPPF and Policies
CS14, CS18 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.

9 Landscape Management Plan

Except for demolition and site clearance of the demolished material only, no
development shall commence until a landscape management plan including long-
term design objectives, management responsibilities and maintenance schedules for
a minimum period of 10 years has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The plan shall include any areas of existing landscaping,
proposed wildlife areas, new tree planting and any areas of proposed landscaping
other than areas

Reason: To ensure the long-term management of existing and proposed
Landscaping. This condition is applied in accordance with the objectives of the
NPPF and Policies CS14, CS18 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy
2006-2026.

10 | Arboricultural Programme of Works

Except for demolition and site clearance of the demolished material only, no
development or other operations shall commence on site until a detailed schedule of
tree works including timing and phasing of operations has been submitted and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the enhancement of the development by the retention of existing
trees and natural features during the construction phase This condition is applied in
accordance with the objectives of the NPPF and Policies CS14, CS18 and CS19 of
West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.

11 | Tree protection scheme

No development (including site clearance and any other preparatory works) shall
commence on site until a scheme for the protection of trees to be retained is
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such a
scheme shall include a plan showing the location of the protective fencing, and shall
specify the type of protective fencing. The protective fencing should be as specified
at Chapter 6 and detailed in figure 2 of B.S.5837:2012. All such fencing shall be
erected prior to any development works taking place and at least 2 working days’
notice shall be given to the Local Planning Authority that it has been erected. It shall
be maintained and retained for the full duration of works or until such time as agreed
in writing with the Local Planning Authority. No activities or storage of materials
whatsoever shall take place within the protected areas without the prior written
agreement of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the enhancement of the development by the retention of existing
trees and natural features during the construction phase in accordance with the
National Planning Policy Framework, and Policies CS14, CS18 and CS19 of West
Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026. A pre-commencement condition is necessary
because insufficient detailed information accompanies the application; tree
protection installation measures may be required to be undertaken throughout the
demolition phase and so it is necessary to approve these details before any
development takes place.

West Berkshire Council District Plli?nnin% 5Committee 08" September 2021
age



12 | Arboricultural Method Statement

Except for demolition and site clearance of the demolished material only, no
development or other operations shall commence on site until an arboricultural
method statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority and shall include details of the implementation, supervision and
monitoring of all temporary tree protection and any special construction works within
any defined tree protection area.

Reason: To ensure the protection of trees identified for retention at the site in
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework and Policies CS14, CS18
and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026. A pre-commencement
condition is necessary because insufficient detailed information accompanies the
application; tree protection installation, other measures and works may be required
to be undertaken throughout the construction phase and so it is necessary to
approve these details before any development takes place.

13 | External lighting

No external lighting shall be installed until a lighting strategy has been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The strategy shall:

(a) Identify those areas on the site that are particularly sensitive for bats and that
are likely to cause disturbance.

(b) Show how and where external lighting will be installed so that it can be clearly
demonstrated that areas to be lit will not disturb or prevent the above species.

(c) Include and isolux diagram of the proposed lighting.

(d) Ensure all lighting levels are designed within the limitations of Environmental
Lighting Zone 1, as described by the Institute of Lighting Engineers.

No external lighting shall be installed except in accordance with the specifications
and locations set out in the strategy and these shall be maintained thereafter in
accordance with the strategy. Under no circumstances should any other external
lighting be installed without prior consent from the local planning authority.

Reason: To ensure the conservation and enhancement of the biodiversity assets of
the site, including the protection of species and habitats. This condition is applied in
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, and Policies CS17 and
CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026).

Appendices

1. Agenda Report, appendices and update sheet for 20/02402/REG3 for the WAP Committee
meeting held on the 215t July 2021

2. WAP Committee update sheet for 20/02402/REG3 for the WAP Committee meeting held on
the 215t July 2021 (Includes final Sport England consultaion response received on 20 July
2021)

West Berkshire Council District Plgnningl%ommittee 08" September 2021
age



Agenda ltem 4.(1)

Item Application No. and Statutory Target . .
No. Parish Date Proposal, Location, Applicant

(1) 20/02402/REG3 21 December 2020*  Creation of open space for public recreation
including demoliton of former football
ground clubhouse; delivery of new parking

Newbury Town spaces and erection of timber bollards and
Council new fencing generally.

Newbury Football Club, Faraday Road,
Newbury, RG14 2AD

West Berkshire Council

*Extension of time agreed until 22 July 2021

The application can be viewed on the Council’s website at the following link:
http://planning.westberks.gov.uk/rpp/index.asp?caseref=20/02402/REG3

Recommendation Summary: To DELEGATE to the Head of Development and Planning
to GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION subject to the
schedule of conditions (Section 8.2 of the report)

AND

Subject to a referral to the National Planning Casework Unit
as the Local Planning Authority is minded to grant planning
permission for an application on land owned by the Council,
despite receiving an objection from Sport England.

Ward Members: Councillor Jeff Cant
Councillor Jeff Beck

Reason for Committee Significant public interest and the proposal affects Council
determination: owned land

Committee Site Visit: 15th July 2021

Contact Officer Details

Name: Masie Masiiwa

Job Title: Senior Planning Officer

Tel No: 01635 519111

Email: Masie.Masiiwa@westberks.gov.uk

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 21 July 2021

Page 23



1. Introduction

1.1 This application seeks full planning permission to demolish the football ground
clubhouse, lavatory block and turnstiles at the Newbury Football Stadium, Faraday
Road, Newbury.

1.2 The clubhouse to be demolished contains a total area of approximately 421.5 square
metres of floor space which includes, a large functions room, kitchen, bar area, home
and away changing rooms, referees room, WCs for ladies and gents and a lounge
area.

1.3 The final amended proposed site plan indicates that the application also seeks to
create temporary pay and display parking spaces on the cleared area and temporary
pay and display parking on existing areas of tarmac hard standing. Approximately 80
new parking spaces are proposed on the cleared area.

1.4 In place of the old clubhouse and turnstiles there will be new timber bollards to prevent
unauthorised vehicles access to the immediately adjacent grass football pitch. The
grass pitch will be retained.

1.5 Proposal background: The Council submitted a planning application under reference
19/00814/FUL (Creation of 4 x multi-use games areas with replacement gates and
new fencing; 8 x new floodlights (replacing existing 6 x floodlights). The application
was withdrawn following an objection from Sport England and after the Council
adopted the West Berkshire Council Playing Pitch Strategy in February 2020.

1.6 The proposals will not alter the size of the existing grass playing pitch. It is proposed
that the grass pitch will be maintained to provide a grass surface for general
recreational sport and where all members of the public will be welcome to its use on a
first come first serve basis. Appropriate signage and pedestrian route map will be
erected adjacent to the grass pitch to direct people to the public lavatories available at
the Wharf, approximately 350 metres away and accessible via Victoria Park. These
facilities include male and female lavatories; one disabled unit; one parent and child
room, nappy changing facilities and radar keys can be made available for disabled
access. It is submitted that these facilities are available between 8am and 6pm seven
days a week except for Christmas day.

1.7 There are two parallel applications on the same site submitted by the Newbury
Community Football Group. These applications are still under consideration and
propose the following:

a) A replacement of the existing clubhouse in conjunction with the construction of a new
spectator stand under an outline planning application reference 20/01530/OUT.

b) Arenewal and expansion of the existing football pitch to form a new 3G main pitch
and a smaller 3G training / practice pitch under the full planning application
reference 20/01966/COMIND.

1.8 The application site is known as the ‘Newbury Football Ground’ and is an existing
recreational facility covering approximately 1.5 hectares to the east of Newbury Town
Centre. The facilities comprises a single grass playing pitch, single storey clubhouse
and up until recently a spectator stand that has been dismantled and taken off site.
The site contains external flood lighting mounted on masts around the football pitch
and the pitch is enclosed by timber and chain link fencing of varying height.

1.9 To the north of the site is the London Road Industrial Estate with a variety of uses, to
the east is landscaped areas including trees and allotments, approximately 50 metres
to the south-east beyond the Kennet and Avon Canal are residential properties. To the

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 21 July 2021

Page 28



1.10

2.1

south of the site are trees within grassed areas beyond which the southern edge of the
site falls within a designated Conservation Area. Further to the south are footpaths and
a Public Right of Way (NEWB/28/7) beyond which is the Kennet and Avon Canal and
the River Kennet, which is designated in its entirety as a Site of Special Scientific
Interest (SSSI). To the west of the playing pitch is an existing car parking area. The
existing vehicular access into the site is through the industrial estate to the north.

The site falls within Flood Zones 2 and 3 according to Environment Agency Flood

Mapping.

The football ground is also currently registered as an Asset of Community Value

(ACV).

Relevant Planning History

The table below outlines the relevant planning history of the application site.

Application Proposal Decision / Date
20/01966/COMIND | Renewal and expansion of the existing | Pending
football pitch to form a new 3G main pitch and | consideration
a smalller 3G training / practice pitch.
Applicant:  Newbury Community Football
Group (NCFG)
20/01530/0UT Outline permission for replacement of | Pending
clubhouse and new spectator stand at | consideration
Newbury Football Ground. Matters to be
considered: Access and Layout.
Applicant:  Newbury Community Football
Group (NCFG)
19/00814/FUL Creation of 4 x multi-use games areas with | Withdrawn
replacement gates and new fencing; 8 x new
floodlights (replacing existing 6 x floodlights)
Applicant: West Berkshire Council
18/02046/DEMO Application for prior notification for demolition | Approved/further
of spectator stand details not
required for
approval
18/00604/OUT Outline permission for replacement of | Appeal
clubhouse and stand at Newbury Football | Withdrawn
Ground. Matters to be considered: Access
and Layout. (As a non-
determination
Applicant: Newbury Community Football | appeal, the
Group (NCFG) application has
not been

determined by

West Berkshire Council

Western Area Planning Committee

Page 29

21 July 2021




the LPA)
18/00603/COMIND | Renewal and expansion of existing football | Appeal
pitch including artificial pitches. Withdrawn
Applicant:  Newbury Community Football | (As a non-
Group (NCFG) determination
appeal, the
application has
not been
determined by
the LPA)
94/45314/FUL Stands (standing only) - 8no units, 3m high | Approved
north boundary fence.
93/43408/ADD Replacement of existing floodlights & stands. | Approved
93/42876/ADD Renovation of clubhouse & new building for | Approved
entrance shop toilets & groundsman store
93/42875/ADD Replacement grandstand & additional car | Approved
parking.
89/35983/ADD Day time car park for racal vodafone evening | Refused
and weekend training area for football club
82/18107/ADD Small 100 seater grandstand Approved
81/16061/ADD Erection of grand stand for spectators 04.11.1981
79/10044/ADD Proposed new pavilion & change of use to | Approved
football ground
77/07234/ADD Non illuminated hoarding Approved
77/06859/ADD Extension to clubhouse Approved
75/03793/ADD Extension to provide changing rooms Approved

3.1

3.2

Procedural Matters

The proposed development falls within the column 1 description at paragraph 10 (b)
(Urban development projects —car parks) of Schedule 2 of the Town and
Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) (EIA) Regulations 2017. The
Local Planning Authority (LPA) has taken into account the selection criteria
in Schedule 3 of the 2017 EIA Regulations. An EIA screening exercise has been
completed in accordance with the Regulations, which concluded that the proposed
development is not “EIA development’ according to the 2017 EIA Regulations and
an Environmental Statement is not required.

A site notice was displayed on 06" November 2020 and the deadline for

representations expired on 27" November 2020.

West Berkshire Council

Western Area Planning Committee 21 July 2021

Page 26



3.3 The development has been amended on numerous occasions. The main amendment
plans and additional supporting information package was received in December 2020
in response to officer-level feedback and feedback from Sport England. According to
the Planning Practice Guidance, where an application has been amended it is up to
the local planning authority to decide whether further publicity and consultation is
necessary, taking into account a number of considerations including previous
objections, and the significance of the changes. The amendments have been made
publically available via the Councils planning website, the consultees and members of
the public who had made written representations were notified on 23 December 2020.
Further minor amendments were made after this date, however these amendments did
not warrant the display of additional site notices or further notifications.

3.4 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a levy charged on most new development to
pay for new infrastructure required as a result of the new development. CIL is only
charged on residential and retail development. The proposed development would not
require any financial contributions to be made in respect of the Councils Adopted CIL
Charging Schedule

3.5 More information is available at www.westberks.gov.uk/cil

4. Consultation

Statutory and non-statutory consultation

41 The table below summarises the consultation responses received during the
consideration of the application. The full responses may be viewed with the
application documents on the Council's website, using the link at the start of this
report.

Newbury Town | Objection in agreement with Sports England and in line with NTC
Council: strategy.

WBC Highways | No objection

Officer:

WBC Drainage | No objection, subject to condition
Officer:

WBC No objection.

Conservation:

WBC Ecology | No objection subject to condition

Officer:
WBC Leisure: No comments received
WBC Trees | No objection subject to conditions
Officer:
WBC No objection subject to condition
Archaeology:
West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 21 July 2021

Page 27



Sport England No objection subject to a signed Unilateral Undertaking. If

application is approved with no Unilateral Undertaking, Sport
England’s position is one of objection.

Environment No objection subject to condition
Agency:

Canal and River | No comments to make response received

Trust

Public representations

4.2 Representations have been received from 12 contributors in objection and one
impartial contributor.

4.3 The full responses may be viewed with the application documents on the Council’'s
website, using the link at the start of this report. In summary, the following planning
related points have been raised:

e No Transport assessment submitted by the Council.

e Would expect the applicant to submit an air quality report

¢ No evidence of need for this proposed ordinary recreation space

e \Victoria Park and Fireman's Field recreation spaces are already available
nearby.

e No evidence of need for a quality football pitch in WBC's Playing Pitch &
Leisure Strategies, the FA's Local Football Facility Plan

¢ No evidence of a need for more car parking

e Existing facility should be made secure by fencing, gates and made available
for booking

¢ Removal of changing rooms

e The ground is still protected as an Asset of Community Value. The Community
that registered it has not been invited to be involved in the decision or to buy.

e Contrary to Core Strategy Policy CS18 Green Infrastructure, NPPF and Sport
England's loss of sports pitch criteria.

e Contrary to WBC Playing Pitch Strategy

e Demolition is the starting point for development, at which time a like-for-like
replacement should be operational.

e The closure of the ground is hugely unpopular and totally unjustified

¢ The Council are preventing use of the ground for its intended purpose

e Council have failed to identify a deliverable proposal for a new or replacement
facility that is of equal or better quality.

¢ Increase in the severity and regularity of flooding of the downstream properties

e The Flood Risk Assessment does not assess whether the existing drainage
strategy qualifies as a sustainable drainage system

5. Planning Policy

5.1  Planning law requires that applications for planning permission be determined in
accordance with the development plan, unless material considerations indicate
otherwise. The following policies of the statutory development plan are relevant to the
consideration of this application.

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 21 July 2021

Page 22



52

6.

6.1

6.2

6.3

e Policies NPPF, ADPP1, ADDP2, CS5, CS13, CS14, CS15, CS16, CS17,
CS18 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026 (WBCS).

e Policies TRANS.1, OVS.5 and OVS.6 of the West Berkshire District Local
Plan 1991-2006 (Saved Policies 2007).

The following material considerations are relevant to the consideration of this
application:

e National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)

¢ Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)

e Quality Design SPG (2006)

e Sustainable Drainage SPD (2017)

e Manual for Streets

e West Berkshire Cycle and Motorcycle Advice and Standards for New
Development 2014

West Berkshire Council Playing Pitch Strategy (2020)
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017
Newbury Vision 2026 and 2036

Newbury Town Design Statement

Sport England ‘Playing fields policy and guidance’ (2018)

Appraisal

The main issues for consideration in this application are:

Principle of development

Heritage, design, function, character and appearance of the area
Impact on neighbouring amenity and quality

Highway safety

Trees and landscaping

Flooding and drainage

Biodiversity

Representations

Planning balance and conclusion

Principle of development

Policy ADPP1 identifies the District Settlement Hierarchy where new development will
be focused, primarily on previously developed land.

According to Policy ADPP2, Newbury will continue to fulfil its key role as the
administrative centre and major town centre for the district, with a wide range of retail,
employment, leisure and community services and facilities. The policy indicates that
community infrastructure will be provided to meet the growth in population and existing
community facilities will be protected and, where appropriate, enhanced. These
include leisure and cultural facilities, which contribute to the attraction of the town for
both residents and visitors.

Policy CS18 sets out that the district’'s green infrastructure (which includes outdoor
sports and leisure facilities) will be protected and enhanced, new developments will
make provision for high quality and multifunctional open spaces of an appropriate size

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 21 July 2021

Page 29



6.4

6.5

6.6

6.7

6.8

6.9

6.10

6.11

and will also provide links to the existing green infrastructure network. It goes on to
say, developments resulting in the loss of green infrastructure or harm to its use or
enjoyment by the public will not be permitted. Where exceptionally it is agreed that an
area of green infrastructure can be lost a new one of equal or greater size and
standard will be required to be provided in an accessible location close by.

The supporting text to policy CS18 recognises that the multi-functional nature of green
infrastructure in the District is important for many reasons. It contributes significantly to
the quality of life for residents, workers and visitors, in terms of both visual amenity
and for sport and recreation purposes.

The Newbury Vision 2026 and 2036 sets out the Council and community aspirations
for the future of Newbury. The document indicates support for the growth of
recreational and sporting facilities within Newbury and the preservation and
enhancement of the district's open space.

Wider Regeneration Proposals for London Road Industrial Estate

It is recognised that the Council has aspirations for the wider regeneration of the
London Road Industrial Estate (in which the application site is located). However, this
future development can only be afforded limited weight at this stage.

In 2020, the Council adopted the West Berkshire Council Playing Pitch Strategy, which
amongst other matters addresses the anticipated future loss of the Faraday Road
stadium site.

In addressing Sport England’s (SE) planning policy exception E1, the West Berkshire
Council Playing Pitch Strategy (2020) at page 32 proposes that the:

“Relocation of the single adult sized grass pitch at Faraday Road, together with
changing accommodation and the other necessary league requirements to create a
step 6 facility on a site which will be no more than 20 minutes’ drive time away, and
upgrade the current grass pitch to a 3G pitch with the ability to develop it to a step 5
facility. This site will be available before any construction work starts at Faraday
Road.”

In addressing SE planning policy exception E4, The West Berkshire Council Playing
Pitch Strategy (2020) also states at page 33 that:

“The Council also believes that Sport England Policy Exception E4 applies in part,
namely: The playing field or playing fields, which would be lost as a result of the
proposed development, would be replaced by a playing field or playing fields of an
equivalent or better quality and of equivalent or greater quantity, in a suitable location
and subject to equivalent or better management arrangements, prior to the
commencement of development”

The Playing Pitch Strategy (2020) also outlines that the replacement site for Faraday
Road stadium would be expected to “have the ability to host competitive play and
training to at least the same level as required now i.e. Step 6 with the potential to
move to Step 5”.

Asset of Community Value

West Berkshire Council awarded Faraday Road Football Ground an Asset of
Community Value status (ACV). An ACV status is a material planning consideration
when it comes to the loss of the ACV as a community facility. The ACV designation’s
overall objective is to provide the community with a Community Right to Bid when the
ACV is proposed for sale. The non-statutory advice note for local authorities (October

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 21 July 2021

Page 2@



2012) advises that local planning authorities can consider whether listing as an ACV is
a material planning consideration in determining a planning application, taking into
account all of the circumstances of the case.

6.12 The Council's application outlines that the site has not been in use for a few years and
that the last tenanted occupant of the football ground left in June 2018 when the lease
on the ground expired (three years ago). The lease had originally expired in June
2016 but was extended by mutual agreement for another two years. Once the site had
been vacated it is stated that the Council's Property Services commissioned a full
condition survey of the clubhouse building in July 2018. The survey report has been
submitted and it confirms that the building could not be reasonably re-occupied without
carrying out £208,000 of immediate repairs and services upgrades. It is also stated
that there are Health and Safety concerns to the public associated with the vacant
building through previous trespass incidents and general condition of the building. Itis
further stated that the repairs would render the building beyond economic repair, with
the building having no immediate or future use in line with the Council's future
development plans for the site. The applicant has also submitted some additional
internal photographs outlining the internal stripping out of services by vandals or
salvage hunters. The submitted planning statement also outlines that the demolition of
the old clubhouse is part of plans to provide a new, sustainable long term home for
football elsewhere within the Newbury area. In terms of the planning balance, officers
consider the applicant's economic justification to be sufficient to support that the
clubhouse building can be demolished, along with the concerns with regard to public
health and safety.

6.13 The Council intends to make available to the public, on a temporary basis, the
former football ground grass pitch as a community leisure facility until the land is
required for redevelopment, subject to planning. This community leisure use is similar
to the existing site. Officers consider that there is no loss of the community asset at
this stage. Whilst it is the Council’s intention to redevelop the site in the future, it is at
that point that the loss of the ACV on a permanent basis can be assessed and the
Community Right to Bid can be engaged. At this stage the clubhouse, stand and
turnstiles can be readily replaced on the site should it be necessary. It is also noted
that the community football group have submitted their own separate planning
applications on the site and one of these applications proposes the demolition of the
clubhouse and construction of a replacement.

6.14 Sport England (SE) were consulted as a listed statutory consultee within the Town and
Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015.

6.15 Paragraph 97 of the NPPF states that existing open space, sports and recreational
buildings and land, including playing fields, should not be built on unless:

a) an assessment has been undertaken which has clearly shown the open
space, buildings or land to be surplus to requirements; or

b) the loss resulting from the proposed development would be replaced by
equivalent or better provision in terms of quantity and quality in a suitable
location; or

c) the development is for alternative sports and recreational provision, the
benefits of which clearly outweigh the loss of the current or former use.

6.16 SE’s playing fields policy also states that:

Sport England will oppose the granting of planning permission for any development
which would lead to the loss of, or would prejudice the use of:

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 21 July 2021

Page 3%



6.17

6.18

6.19

6.20

6.21

a) all or any part of a playing field, or
b) land which has been used as a playing field and remains undeveloped, or
c) land allocated for use as a playing field

This application is in keeping with the ground’s status as a playing field and the
Council's strategies to both enhance the London Road Estate and improve
recreational and sporting faciliies and thereby health and wellbeing. Following
meetings and discussions with SE, the application red line and proposed site plan
were amended to ensure the playing pitch is retained. The playing field will therefore
not to be altered through this planning application and this has been confirmed and
accepted by SE. The proposal is for the site to be opened up for public recreational
sport, therefore the playing field will remain a designated playing field. The only
differences are that the site will be open to the public to use and not a single club, and
that there will be the demolition of the ancillary facilities including toilets within the
clubhouse.

SE raise no objection, however they remain concerned with regard the demolition of
the ancillary accommodation to support the stadium facility. In their consultation
response SE outline that when the facilities are replaced, then the proposal would
comply with SE’s planning policy E4. In the interim, SE recommended that they would
have no objection provided the Council signs a Unilateral Undertaking for the
replacement of the stadium. The rationale for this approach is that the Unilateral
Undertaking would clearly include a statement that the existing Faraday Road site
would not be redeveloped until the replacement stadium is operational. For
completeness, SE provided a clear definiton of what would be considered the
redevelopment to this site, which is the reduction in the grass footprint, which forms
the playing field/pitch. In this regard, the development the subject of this planning
application would still go ahead as there is no reduction to the playing field area.

Following an internal review of the SE requirements by the LPA, including legal advice
the LPA cannot agree with SE’s requirement for a Unilateral Undertaking on this
application. The LPA considered that the Unilateral Undertaking would not be linked to
this current planning application, but instead it will refer to a future
development/application. It is therefore considered that the Unilateral Undertaking
would not meet the planning tests as set out under the limitation on use of planning
obligations under paragraph 122 of the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations
2010. SE have been made aware of the above LPA position through correspondence
and in response, SE formally confirmed that without a Unilateral Undertaking SE’s
position would be one of objection.

The Council has submitted a statement from the Council’s Leisure Service written by
the Service Director — Communities and Wellbeing (Mathew Pearce). The statement
states that the Council’s Playing Pitch Strategy approved and adopted by the Council
in February 2020 outlines the Council’s intention to relocate the pitch at Faraday Road.
The statement further states that the new Sports Hub at Monks Lane (Newbury Rugby
Club) will provide opportunities for clubs that previously played at Faraday Road to
train and play matches and that the Council’s aim is to deliver the new Sports Hub by
March 2022 subject to planning approval.

The replacement football facility at the Newbury Rugby Club, would comply with the
playing pitch strategy. However in policy terms the LPA should be securing permission
for a replacement football facility before granting permission for the demolition. While
the LPA cannot secure a replacement facility as part of this planning application or at
this time demonstrate that there is a replacement facility in place, the Council’s
intentions are clear as provided in the statement. The LPA has considered the above

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 21 July 2021

Page 28



6.22

6.23

6.24

6.25

6.26

6.27

6.28

6.29

6.30

statement in the overall circumstances of the application and the planning balance.
The LPA considers that there is sufficient justification to consider that the Council is
committed to replacing the Faraday Road stadium and comply with its own adopted
Playing Pitch Strategy. This adds weight in overcoming the SE objection.

Where an LPA is minded to grant planning permission for an application, despite
receiving an objection from Sport England, then the requirements of the Government’s
Circular 02/2009 may apply. The Circular instructs the LPA to notify the Secretary of
State for Communities and Local Government through the National Planning
Casework Unit of an application if the land is owned by a local authority (currently or
within the five years prior to receiving the application) and where Sport England has
objected due to a resulting deficiency of playing field land in the area or because the
replacement to be provided is inadequate.

The National Planning Casework Unit referral requirements are set out in the Town
and Country Planning (Consultation) (England) Direction 2009 and Department of
Communities and Local Government letter to Chief Planning Officers dated 10th
March 2011. If Members are minded to approve the application without a Unilateral
Undertaking, the application will be referred to the National Planning Casework Unit to
establish whether the Secretary of State will call in the application for a decision.

Given the considerations outlined above, officers consider that the proposal would
comply with the overall aims and objectives of Polices ADDP1, ADDP2 and CS18 and
guidance within the Newbury Vision 2026 and 2036 through the provision of a leisure
community facility.

In conclusion, the principle of development is acceptable in accordance with the
policies discussed above. The wider development plan policies and other material
planning considerations are further considered below.

Heritage, design, function, character and appearance of the area

According to Core Strategy Policy CS14, new development must demonstrate high
quality and sustainable design that respects and enhances the character and
appearance of the area. Considerations of design and layout must be informed by the
wider context, having regard not just to the immediate area, but also to the wider
locality. Development shall contribute positively to local distinctiveness and sense of
place.

The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 provides that with
respect to any buildings or other land in a conservation area, special attention shall be
paid to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of that
area.

Policy CS19 of the Core Strategy seeks the conservation and, where appropriate,
enhancement of heritage assets and their settings including Conservation Areas. The
NPPF seeks to protect heritage assets and that where a development proposal will
lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset,
this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal.

The southern boundary of the application site falls within a conservation area. The
Council's Conservation Officer has assessed the proposal and raises no objections.

In terms of archaeological impacts, the Council's Archaeology Officer has reviewed the
application and indicated that they have no objection to the proposal, subject to a
condition. The applicants will be required to commission a programme of
archaeological work starting with a desk-based assessment but very likely including

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 21 July 2021

Page 33



6.31

6.32

6.33

6.34

6.35

6.36

6.37

6.38

6.39

6.40

some targeted test-pitting, and if necessary some excavation. A condition has been
recommended as shown in the list of conditions.

The Canal and River Trust have raised no objection, subject to suitable methods of
protecting the water environment of the River Kennet are in place throughout
demolition. A condition is attached accordingly.

The proposal would have no adverse impact on views for users of the public right of
way footpath along the canal to the south of the site. The proposal is therefore
considered to comply with Core Strategy Policy CS19 and the NPPF in terms of
conserving the historic environment.

Impact on neighbouring amenity and quality of life

Planning Policies CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy are of
importance with regard to the potential impact upon neighbouring amenity.

The layout plans demonstrate the proposal would maintain adequate separation
distances from existing housing ensuring no material impact on neighbouring amenity.
It is also considered that the noise levels from the proposed leisure use will be similar
to those of the existing community facility. Representations have asked for an
assessment of air quality, however this is not considered necessary as the existing
and proposed uses are the same (assembly and leisure). Planning conditions can also
be imposed to restrict the erection of external flood lighting to reduce any excessive
light pollution/nuisance to neighbouring properties.

Overall, the impact on neighbouring amenity from the proposed development is
considered minimal and would not have a materially harmful impact on nearby
residents such that the proposal is considered to comply with Core Strategy Policy
CS14, NPPF and the SPD on Quality Design.

Highway safety

Policies CS13 of the Core Strategy and TRANS.1 of the Saved Policies of the Local
Plan relate to highways. Road safety in West Berkshire is a key consideration for all
development in accordance with Core Strategy Policy CS13.

The Highway Authority has carefully considered the proposal and the Highway Officers
raise no objection. The Highway Officer concluded that the impacts on the highway
would be limited as the majority of activities will be during off peak hours and over
weekends. The footpath links to the centre and Victoria Park will be retained. The
proposed car park plan has been amended to ensure that the aisle widths are 6.0
metres wide as recommended by the Highway Officer.

Overall, it is considered that the proposed development would not have a material
impact on highway safety. The proposal is therefore considered to comply with Core
Strategy Policy CS13, NPPF and TRANS.1 of the Saved Policies of the Local Plan.

Trees and Landscaping

Policy CS19 of the WBCS concerns the historic environment and landscape character.
It seeks to ensure that the diversity and local distinctiveness of the landscape
character of the district is conserved and enhanced. Particular regard has been given
to the conservation and, where appropriate enhancement of landscape assets.

The proposal will result in the loss of a small number of trees that are considered low
category by the Council's Tree Officer due to their poor condition or small size. The

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 21 July 2021

Page 28



6.41

6.42

6.43

6.44

6.45

6.46

6.47

6.48

6.49

significant boundary tree cover will remain and no high category trees or trees subject
to statutory protection will be removed.

The site contains a number of trees to the east and south of the existing playing pitch.
The Council Tree Officer has carefully considered the proposal and raises no
objections subject to measures to protect retained trees and the provision of
landscaping being secured via a recommended planning condition.

Overall it is therefore considered that the proposed development would conserve the
trees within and adjacent to the site in compliance with Core Strategy Policy CS18 and
NPPF

Flooding and drainage

Core Strategy Policy CS16 (Flooding) applies across the district and highlights the
cumulative impacts of development on flooding within the district.

The application site is partly located within Flood Zone 2 and 3 of the Environment
Agency’s Flood Map, the site is therefore considered to have a high probability of
flooding. The Environment Agency were consulted and they raise no objection, as
the built footprint will be decreasing on the site through the demolished structures. Any
impact on floodplain storage will be positive. The Environment Agency also concluded
that while the site is at risk of flooding and lies partially in flood zone 3, the usage
(parking and recreation) is unchanged from existing. Furthermore, a flood evacuation
plan has been provided in the Flood Risk Assessment.

The Local Lead Flood Authority has requested that the applicant commissions a
survey of the existing drainage system. The survey and any other investigations will
include the existing surface water drainage system up to the discharge point into the
Thames Water network, if this is the system adopted on the site. The Drainage Officer
has indicated that there may be soakaways on the site, which would have managed
the roof run-off from the clubhouse and stands. The presence and condition of the
soakaways will need to be investigated through the survey and any upgrade or
maintenance would then be required to ensure the drainage system remains sufficient
and fit for purpose for the site. In addition, once demolition has occurred a full
topographical survey of the relevant area should be undertaken of the resultant levels
of any residual base structures, including for the old spectator stand area. A condition
has been recommended requesting the submission of the drainage details.

The proposal could comply with the provisions of the Core Strategy Policy CS16,
NPPF and Sustainable Drainage SPD (2017).

Biodiversity

Core Strategy Policy CS17 (Biodiversity and geodiversity) states that, in order to
conserve and enhance the environmental capacity of the District, all new development
should maximise opportunities to achieve net gains in biodiversity and geodiversity in
accordance with the Berkshire Biodiversity Action Plan and the Berkshire Local
Geodiversity Action Plan.

The Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 and Article 10 of the
Habitats Directive stresses the importance of natural networks of linked corridors to
allow movement of species between suitable habitats, and promote the expansion of
biodiversity networks.

The proposal would be largely within the footprint of the existing playing pitch and
facilities within the site and within proximity to the River Kennet SSSI. The applicant
submitted an emergence bat survey, which was reviewed by the Council’s ecologist

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 21 July 2021

Page 39



6.50

6.51

6.52

6.53

6.54

7.1

7.2

7.3

who raises no objection subject to conditions being attached. The structure would
need to be deconstructed using a precautionary method statement submitted and
approved by the Council's Ecologist and enacted in the presence of a licenced bat
ecologist.

Natural England raise no objections, as the application will not have significant
adverse impacts on the adjacent River Kennet Site of Special Scientific Interest
(SSSI).

The proposed development could comply with the Conservation Regulations 2010,
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act
2006, NPPF and Policy CS17 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2012.

Representations

Members of the public have submitted written representations mainly expressing
objections against the application. The relevant planning points raised in objection
have been acknowledged and considered in this report and mainly focus on the
significant value of the stadium site to the community.

The Newbury Town Council object to the proposal and state that the proposal fails to
comply with Sport England policies and the Newbury Town Council Strategy. The
Town Council further objected that the open space will have inadequate facilities and
requested that the description must include the word “sport”. On this particular point,
the LPA can only consider the application as put forward by the applicant and it is
outlined that the proposal is for the creation of a recreational open space. In addition
Newbury Town Council also outline that the proposal would be contrary to the
Council's asset of community value register. This has also been addressed in this
report.

References have also been made to the Appeal Inspector’s flooding comments under
application 19/01281/OUTMAJ at the adjacent Newspaper House. The Inspector
concluded that the effect of the development on flood risk was the primary
determinative issue. The proposal at Newspaper House was for a residential use,
which is classified as a “more vulnerable” use in terms of flooding than the proposed
recreational open space, which is classified as a “water-compatible development’. The
planning practice guidance requires that for residential uses a sequential test
approach is implemented to steer new residential development to areas with the
lowest risk of flooding. Officers consider that the flooding merits of the Newspaper
application will therefore not be applicable to this application.

Planning Balance and Conclusion

This decision has been considered using the relevant policies related to the proposal
as outlined in the report.

Planning applications must result in sustainable development with consideration being
given to the economic, social and environmental sustainability aspects of the
proposal. Officers consider that the proposal will make a limited contribution to the
wider economic dimensions of sustainable development.

With regard to the environmental role of fundamentally contributing to protecting and
enhancing our natural, built and historic environment, the impact on the character and
appearance of the surrounding area, flood risk, impact on trees and biodiversity
protection have been fully assessed using expert advice as outlined in this report.
Officers consider that the final amended plans sufficiently preserve and enhance the

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 21 July 2021

Page 36



74

8.1

8.2

existing natural environment on the site. Officers consider that the proposal makes a
significant contribution to the wider social dimensions of sustainable development
through the continued provision of a community leisure facility. This provision is
consistent with the existing leisure facility and this carries significant weight in the
planning balance. Officers have also considered the Council's clear plan for a
replacement stadium facility which is supported by a written statement from the
Service Director — Communities and Wellbeing (Mathew Pearce) and Sport England’s
objection if a Unilateral Undertaking is not signed. Officers have also considered the
submitted justification for the demolition of the clubhouse on public health and safety
grounds. The site is currently not in use, the development is for alternative sports and
recreational provision. Officers consider that the benefits of bringing the site back into
a community use clearly outweighs the continued non-use of the site.

Having taken account of all the relevant development plan policy considerations and
the other material considerations referred to in this report and the expert consultation

provided, officers consider that the development proposed is acceptable and is
recommended to members for approval.

Full Recommendation

To DELEGATE to the Head of Development and Planning to GRANT PLANNING
PERMISSION subject to the schedule of conditions (Section 8.2 of the report)

AND

Subject to a referral to the National Planning Casework Unit as the Local Planning
Authority is minded to grant planning permission for an application on land owned by
the Council, despite receiving an objection from Sport England.

Schedule of Conditions

Time Limit for commencement

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three
years from the date of this permission.

Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
(as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).

Approved plans

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved documents and plans:

Received on 26 October 2020:

Pre demo audit

Demolition Method and Risk Assessment
Newbury Football Ground Demolition Works
Condition Survey Report

WBC Highways Pavement Construction Detail
Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Statement

Received on 09 December 2020:

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 21 July 2021

Page 3T



e Amended planning statement

Received on 08 July 2021:

e Applicant additional comment on building condition and health & safety
e Statement from West Berkshire Leisure on the replacement stadium facility

Received on 12 July 2021:
e Amended site plan

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interest of proper planning.

3 Parking and turning in accordance with plans

The use shall not commence until the vehicle parking and turning space have been
completed in accordance with the approved plans (including any surfacing
arrangements and marking out). Thereafter the parking and turning space shall be
kept available for parking and manoeuvring (of private cars and/or private light
goods vehicles) at all times.

Reason: To ensure the development is provided with adequate parking facilities, in
order to reduce the likelihood of roadside parking that would adversely affect road
safety and the flow of traffic. This condition is applied in accordance with the
National Planning Policy Framework, Policy CS13 of the West Berkshire Core
Strategy 2006-2026, and Policy P1 of the Housing Site Allocations DPD 2006-2026.

4 Updated Ecological Appraisal

In the event that development has not commenced 3 years from the date of this
permission, no development shall take place until an updated Ecological Appraisal
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority,
together with any additional surveys recommended by the updated Ecological
Appraisal. The updated surveys shall be used to inform the mitigation measures for
this development.

Reason: If the development has not been commenced the ecological appraisal
should be updated. This is because the ecology of the site is likely to change over
time. All bat species, their breeding sites and resting places are fully protected, as
European Protected Species, under the Conservation of Species and Habitats
Regulations 2010 and the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. This condition is
applied in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, and Policy
CS17 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.

5 | Precautionary method statement (Ecology)

No development shall take place (including any demolition, ground works, site
clearance) until a precautionary method statement has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the local planning authority. The content of the method
statement shall include :

a) suitable methods of protecting the water environment of the River Kennet are
in place throughout demolition.

b) purpose and objectives for the proposed works;

c) detailed working methods necessary to achieve stated objectives;

d) extent and location of proposed demolition works shown on appropriate
scale maps and plans;

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 21 July 2021

Page 32



e) timetable for implementation;

f) ecological persons responsible for implementing the works and monitoring;
g) initial aftercare and long-term maintenance (where relevant);

h) disposal of any wastes arising from works.

Thereafter the works shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the approved
details.

Reason: To ensure the conservation and enhancement of the biodiversity assets of
the site, including the protection of species and habitats during demolition
operations. A pre-commencement condition is required because the precautionary
method statement must be adhered to during all demolition and site clearance
operations. This condition is applied in accordance with the National Planning Policy
Framework and Policies CS17 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy
(2006-2026).

6 Drainage measures

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted flood risk
assessment (Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy, Newbury Football
Club, Stuart Michael Associates Limited, October 2020) and the following mitigation
measures it details:

¢ No increase in built footprint overall - built footprint to be reduced as per
section 2.13 in the Flood Risk Assessment.

Reason: To ensure that there is no loss in floodplain storage caused by the
proposed development. This condition is imposed in accordance with the National
Planning Policy Framework, Policy CS16 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy
(2006-2026), and Part 4 of Supplementary Planning Document Quality Design (June
2006).

7 Surface water drainage survey

Except for demolition and site clearance of the demolished material only, no
development shall commence until a surface water drainage survey is undertaken
and submitted for approval by the Local Planning Authority. The survey report shall
include:

a) afull investigation survey has been carried out of the existing surface
water drainage system up to the discharge point into the Thames
Water network. This investigation shall include jetting and CCTV
camera survey of all pipework, channels and chambers to establish
the route and condition of the network as well as the testing to
BRE365 for infiltration rates of any existing soakaways within the
Applicant’s land ownership. If soakaways do exist but are not in a
serviceable condition and cannot be brought back into a serviceable
condition to adequately deal with run-off volumes previously directed
to them when built, alternative SuDS measures shall be provided for
approval by the LLFA. If no soakaways are found to exist, then
suitable new SuDS measures shall be provided for approval by the
LLFA to deal with an equivalent of 75% nominal (unless an accurate
existing percentage figure can be established as an alternative) run-off
volume from the existing building roofs by way of mitigation for lack of
previous SuDS measures in order to reduce the flow burden on the

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 21 July 2021

Page 39



downstream watercourse. The volume of run-off shall be calculated for
a 1in 100 year storm event plus an additional 40% for climate change;
b) a full topographic survey following demolition of any buildings and
structures of the area formerly occupied by buildings (including
spectator stands) has been carried out;
c) cross sections and construction details of the proposed car park have
been submitted for approval.

Reason: To ensure that surface water will be managed in a sustainable manner.
This condition is imposed in accordance with the National Planning Policy
Framework, Policy CS16 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026), and Part
4 of Supplementary Planning Document Quality Design (June 2006).

8 Programme of archaeological work

Except for demolition and site clearance of the demolished material only, no
development (including any site clearance and excavation) shall commence until the
applicant has secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work in
accordance with a written scheme of investigation, which has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the development
shall incorporate and be undertaken in accordance with the approved statement.

Reason: To ensure that any significant archaeological remains that are found are
adequately recorded. This condition is applied in accordance with the National
Planning Policy Framework, Policies CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core
Strategy (2006-2026), and Supplementary Planning Document Quality Design (June
2006).

9 Scheme of landscaping

The use shall not commence until a detailed scheme of landscaping for the site is
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details
shall include schedules of trees and plants noting species, plant sizes and proposed
numbers/densities, an implementation programme and details of written
specifications including cultivation and other operations involving tree, shrub and
grass establishment.

The scheme shall ensure;

a) Completion of the approved landscape scheme within the first planting season
following completion of development.

b) Any trees shrubs or plants that die or become seriously damaged within five
years of this development shall be replaced in the following year by plants of the
same size and species.

Reason: To ensure the implementation of a satisfactory scheme of
landscaping. This condition is applied in accordance with the NPPF and Policies
CS14, CS18 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.

10 | Landscape Management Plan

Except for demolition and site clearance of the demolished material only, no
development shall commence until a landscape management plan including long-
term design objectives, management responsibilities and maintenance schedules for
a minimum period of 10 years has been submitted to and approved in writing by the

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 21 July 2021

Page 3@



Local Planning Authority. The plan shall include any areas of existing landscaping,
proposed wildlife areas, new tree planting and any areas of proposed landscaping
other than areas

Reason: To ensure the long-term management of existing and proposed
Landscaping. This condition is applied in accordance with the objectives of the
NPPF and Policies CS14, CS18 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy
2006-2026.

11 | Arboricultural Programme of Works

No development or other operations shall commence on site until a detailed
schedule of tree works including timing and phasing of operations has been
submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the enhancement of the development by the retention of existing
trees and natural features during the construction phase This condition is applied in
accordance with the objectives of the NPPF and Policies CS14, CS18 and CS19 of
West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026.

12 | Tree protection scheme

No development (including site clearance and any other preparatory works) shall
commence on site until a scheme for the protection of trees to be retained is
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such a
scheme shall include a plan showing the location of the protective fencing, and shall
specify the type of protective fencing. The protective fencing should be as specified
at Chapter 6 and detailed in figure 2 of B.S.5837:2012. All such fencing shall be
erected prior to any development works taking place and at least 2 working days’
notice shall be given to the Local Planning Authority that it has been erected. It shall
be maintained and retained for the full duration of works or until such time as agreed
in writing with the Local Planning Authority. No activities or storage of materials
whatsoever shall take place within the protected areas without the prior written
agreement of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure the enhancement of the development by the retention of existing
trees and natural features during the construction phase in accordance with the
National Planning Policy Framework, and Policies CS14, CS18 and CS19 of West
Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026. A pre-commencement condition is necessary
because insufficient detailed information accompanies the application; tree
protection installation measures may be required to be undertaken throughout the
demolition phase and so it is necessary to approve these details before any
development takes place.

13 | Arboricultural Method Statement

No development (including site clearance and any other preparatory works) until an
arboricultural method statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority and shall include details of the implementation,
supervision and monitoring of all temporary tree protection and any special
construction works within any defined tree protection area.

Reason: To ensure the protection of trees identified for retention at the site in
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework and Policies CS14, CS18
and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy 2006-2026. A pre-commencement
condition is necessary because insufficient detailed information accompanies the
application; tree protection installation, other measures and works may be required

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 21 July 2021

Page 8%



to be undertaken throughout the construction phase and so it is necessary to
approve these details before any development takes place.

14 | External lighting

No external lighting shall be installed until a lighting strategy has been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The strategy shall:

(a) Identify those areas on the site that are particularly sensitive for bats and that
are likely to cause disturbance.

(b) Show how and where external lighting will be installed so that it can be clearly
demonstrated that areas to be lit will not disturb or prevent the above species.

(c) Include and isolux diagram of the proposed lighting.

(d) Ensure all lighting levels are designed within the limitations of Environmental
Lighting Zone 1, as described by the Institute of Lighting Engineers.

No external lighting shall be installed except in accordance with the specifications
and locations setout in the strategy and these shall be maintained thereafter in
accordance with the strategy. Under no circumstances should any other external
lighting be installed without prior consent from the local planning authority.

Reason: To ensure the conservation and enhancement of the biodiversity assets of
the site, including the protection of species and habitats. This condition is applied in
accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework, and Policies CS17 and
CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026).

Informatives

1. | Approach of the LPA

This decision has been made in a positive way to foster the delivery of sustainable
development having regard to Development Plan policies and available guidance to
secure high quality appropriate development. In this application whilst there has
been a need to balance conflicting considerations, the local planning authority has
worked proactively with the applicant to secure and accept what is considered a
development, which improves the economic, social and environmental conditions of
the area.

2. Pre-conditions

Conditions nos. [5; 12 and 13] impose requirements which must be met prior to
commencement of the development. Failure to observe these requirements could
result in the Local Planning Authority taking enforcement action, or may invalidate
the planning permission and render the whole of the development unlawful

3 Construction noise

The attention of the applicant is drawn to the requirements of Section 60 of the
Control of Pollution Act 1974 in respect of the minimisation of noise on construction
and demolition sites. Application under Section 61 of the Act, for prior consent to
the works, can be made to West Berkshire Environmental Health. For more
information: email ehadvice@westberks.gov.uk, call 01635 519192, or Vvisit
http://info.westberks.gov.uk/environmentalhealth.

West Berkshire Council Western Area Planning Committee 21 July 2021

Page 38



20/02402/REG3 X7

ol

Newbury Football Club, Faraday Road, Newbury RG14 2AD I ;
N A IEE

AR
.

e
ryl i\ m
?&&
A\Bus@eé&f\
\ v <

nve)
T

—

b ‘L — == - 2. = - —— =W "17‘,; -
3 @/ch = T \ “l“ 0
: o g“ 'r"‘“ TN UL E-!'
— SN L
g © | Rl < TSRS D’D—% =\

Map Centre Coordinates : Scale: 1:5803
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission Organisation |West Berkshire Council
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2003. Department

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may

lead to prosecution or civil proceedings . Comments Not Set

Date 08 Ju]y 2021
Scale 1:5804
m 74 148 222 296 SLA Number |0100024151

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38



€934/20%20/0¢ uonedljddy

9913lWw0) 3uluue|d eaJy uJ91sap\ Jo) sydes3oloyd

AV 71iDd
‘AangMmapN ‘peoy Aepele
‘qn|D [|eqiro04 Aungmap

Page 39



peoy Aepeieq wouj yJed Jed pue ss920e wnipels ayl 3uimoys oloyd

Page 46



SS90k 31IS 9y} WoJ) pamalA ‘Supjied Suiisixa pue asnoygn|d ays Jo Malp

Page 41



4INos ay31 woJ} SuIp|INgIN0 pue 32UEBJIUS 3SNOYGN|d Y3 JO MIIA

.r.& i

i

Page 42



Paysijowap 3 03 S3|13suJni Y3 JO MIIA




1sea SuPj00| 3IsaM 3Y1 WoJ} dded Jed syl uiylim asnoygn|d ayi Jo Maip

Page 84



1sea SuPj00| 3Is9M 3yl WoJ} dded Jed syl pue asnoygn|d 3yl JOo M3IA Jaylouy

Page 8%



"SpUe3s 3y} Jo |eAowal 3yl Suimoj|oy

1J3| eaJe Suipueispiey ay3y SMoys os|y 3sam ay3 spaemol Supjoo| youd SuiAeld ay3 woly asnoyqn|d ay3 J0 MaIA

Page 88



‘'Spuels 9y} 4O [eAowad Y3 3uIMo||0} 13| eate Sulpuelspiey ay3 pue youd uiAe|d syl Jo maip

Page 83



uoI}IpuUOd |eJ3UId S} pue 3ulp|ing Y3 03 SYIeJd SMoYS adew|




JooJ pa|13 sy pue uipjing ay3 Jo uonipuod ayl Suimoys agew




T 93ew - 3uip|ing 3y3 4O UOI}IPUOI |euUJDIUI BY} SuiIMmoys 3ew|




¢ 93euwl - 3uip|ing 3y3 4O UOI}IPUOI |euJdIUI 3Y} SuiMmoys 3ew|




€ 93ewl - 3uip|ing 3Yy3 4O UOI}IPUOI |euUJDIUI 3Y} SuiIMmoys 3ew|




# 93ewi - 3uip|ing 9Y3 4O UOI}IPUOI |eusalul 3yl Suimoys a3ew|




G 9dewl - 3uip|ing 3Yy3 4O UOI}IPUOI |euJDIUI 3Y) SuiMmoys S3ew|

Page 64



9 a3euwl - 3uip|ing 9Y3 4O UOI}IPUOI |eusalul 3yl Suimoys a3ew|




[ 93euwl - 3uip|ing 9Y3 4O UOI}IPUOI |eutaiul 3yl Suimoys a3ew|

Page 68



20/02402/REG3 Kl vend
Botd
Newbury Football Club, Faraday Road, Newbury RG14 2AD eI 13 *?

o O<

A ] D = = Lo o o oY 5 > SRRy
L < /

S

= p

g

Gl

prie = :
I ! |
LAl
=
> AR
G5 ju} v,

=
@f
N\

‘ @E sgﬁ;;i\
s A

\

43
§ ) ).

S [0 East Cesore

Buridl §&\GQDDNE0’;E="’J

" //’;?r:_j—t:_%%/ - ” === " -

|
=

e _—— %3 ‘4“%!\'{“1| -
Lo LT\ %%av:c S%\F\%H zul SR -‘.

= \ if. \ SN - . ANL
Map Centre Coordinates : Scale: 1:5803
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission Organisation |West Berkshire Council
of the _Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2003. Department

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may

lead to prosecution or civil proceedings . Comments Not Set

Date 08 July 2021
Scale 1:5804
m 74 148 222 296 SLA Number |0100024151

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 58



WESTERN AREA PLANNING COMMITTEE

21ST JULY 2021
UPDATE REPORT

ltem ) Application  20/02402/REG3 PageNo. 2362
No: No:
Site: Newbury Football Club, Faraday Road, Newbury, RG14 2AD
Planning Officer Masie Masiiwa
Presenting:
Member Presenting:
Parish Council: N/A
Objector(s): Lee McDougall (attending in person)

Les Durrant (on behalf of Alan Pearce) (via zoom)
Supporter(s): N/A
Applicant/Agent: Bill Bagnell
Ward Member speaking: ~ Councillor Jeff Cant

Councillor Jeff Beck
ltem No: (1) Page 1 0f 6

Application No: 20/02402/REG3
Page 59



1. Additional Consultation Responses
Consultation from Sport England
Since the publication of the committee report, Sport England have submitted a consultation

response withdrawing their previous objection. The full Sport England response is attached
below:

ltem No: (1) Application No: %OEI%ZQO%/CI)QEG?) Page 2 of 6



Masie Masiiwa

From: |

Sent: 20 Juby 2021 16:11

Ta: Masie Masiiwa

Cez

Subject: App Ref: 20/02402/REG3 - Faraday Road Stadium (Closed} - Sport England Ref:
PAS20/SEWB/50892

Attachments: Meeting of 13th July

This is an EXTERNAL EMAIL. 5TOP. THINK before you CLICK links or OPEN attachments.
Dear Masie

Further to my response to the above planning application on 110 June 2021 we have had several
discussions with WBC which culminated in a2 meeting last Tuesday (13" July 2021) at 4pm between
Charles Johnson, Executive Director Property, and myself from Sport England, and Lynn Doherty,
the leader of WBC, and several of her colleagues.

Lynn outlined the commitment by WBC to the Faraday Road Stadium replacement site and other
issues arising from this. This was then backed up in an email which we received on Friday 16th
July which | have attached.

As a result | no longer require a Unliteral Undertaking or any conditions as pre-requisite to us not
objecting to the current planning application.

For Clarity

Sport England does not wish to raise an objecticn to this application.

The absence of an objection fo this application, in the context of the Town and Country Planning
Act, cannot he taken as formal support or consent from Sport England or any National Govermning
Body of Sport to any related funding application, ar as may be required by virtue of any pre-existing
funding agreement.

If this application is to be presented to a Planning Committee, we would like to be notified in advance
of the publication of any committee agendas, repori(s) and commitiee date(s). We would be grateful
if you would advise us of the outcome of the application by sending us a copy of the decision nofice.
If you would like any further information or advice please contact me at the address below.

Yours sincerely,

Bob

Bob Sharples

Item No: (1) Application No: F.)’Zg/82e4%2:/LREG3 Page 3 of 6



Page 1 of 1

From:
Sent: 16/M07/2021 10:13:22

To:
Cc:

Subject: Meeting of 13th July

Dear Charles and Bob,

Thank-you for a positive meeting via Zoom on Tuesday evening and I'm glad that we have
agreement on the advantages of working together to deliver our Playing Pitch Strategy. The
meeting notes and draft joint comms statement on the PPS proposed by Nick will be circulated
early next week.

In the meantime, | am happy to confirm the sequencing of our delivery of that part of the PPS that
relates to the new Sports Hub, the former stadium at Faraday Rd and the new pitch as set out
below, assuming the relevant planning applications are approved by the Planning Commities:

« August 2021 — Derelict former clubhouse and associated structures at Faraday Rd
are demolished and work starts to remove and replace sections of fencing and make
available to the public the old grass pitch for general recreational sport on a first
come first basis as per planning application 20/02402/REG3;

« Before the end of summer 2021 — Planning application submitted for the new Sports
Hub at Newbury Rugby Club;

+ Before end December 2021 — Planning application submitted for new playing pitch in
Mewhury;

« [December 2021 - Recreation space for community use at Faraday Rd opens to the
public;

« March 2022 — New Sports Hub opens at Newbury Rughby Club;

« 2022 — Outline planning application submitted for London Road Industrial Estate

« Within 18 months of planning approval for new playing pitch — pitch opens to the
public

« 2023 - Work starts on site for redevelopment of London Road Industrial Estate

| look forward to seeing this progress and working with you over the coming months.
Kind regards,

Lynne

Clir Lynne Doherty

Leader, West Berkshire Council

Consultation response from Newbury Society

A consultation response has been submitted by Newbury Society since the publication of the
committee report and the comments are outlined below:

20/02402/REG3 Newbury Football Stadium, Faraday Road

We support the response from Sport England dated June 11, 2021.

In particular, we understand that Sport England would be satisfied with a unilateral
undertaking from West Berkshire Council for the replacement of the stadium, in other words
that the Faraday Road site would not be redeveloped until an acceptable replacement
stadium is operational.

Item No: (1) Application No: %Oé(géOé/IZQEGS Page 4 of 6



If WBC is serious in its current proposal for a replacement, this should not be a problem.

The current planning application should not be granted until that clear assurance has been
given, and Sport England is satisfied.

However, as an overall comment on redevelopment plans for this area, we feel that removing
a permanent dedicated sports facility on a site where the council owns the freehold, and
replacing it with a more short-term facility on a site which is already a sports site (the Rugby
Club) is an overall loss for sport in Newbury; and do not understand how it could be
appropriate policy for a council which nominally favours an expansion of sports facilities and
supports a rising population.

Yours
David Peacock
For the Newbury Society

Additional representation

Additional comments have been received from Mr Pearce since the publication of the
committee report and the comments are outlined below:

Ref 20/02402/REG3 Creation of open space for public recreation including demolition of
former football ground clubhouse.

As the development is proposing to retain the existing drainage strategy and extend it to suit
any further proposals (Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Statement SMARef:6606-
FRA&DS 4.0 Surface Water Drainage Strategy 4.3) and Surface water from the existing
development within the red outline currently does not discharge into the nearby sewer. (4.2)
as attached.

Thame's water is a statutory consultee, as the development is increasing flow rates, they
have a statutory obligation to maintain a network that can absorb the proposed development
and not increase flooding off site.

Please as a matter of urgency, can you confirm you have consulted with Thames Water and
supply a copy of all correspondents and add this document to your website for the public to
reference.

Officers consider that the site drainage matters have been adequately addressed by the
Environment Agency and the Local Lead Flood Authority Officers who have both
recommended conditions are attached.

2. Update Information

Additional condition - Materials as specified

A condition to address materials was omitted from the schedule of conditions in error. The
condition has been added to the schedule of conditions list for members’ consideration and is
outlined in full below:

The materials to be used in the development hereby permitted shall be as specified on the
approved plans and documents. Where stated that materials shall match the existing, those
materials shall match those on the existing development in colour, size and texture.

Reason: To ensure that the external materials respect the character and appearance of the
area. This condition is applied in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework,
Policies CS14 and CS19 of the West Berkshire Core Strategy (2006-2026) and
Supplementary Planning Document Quality Design (June 2006).

ltem No: (1) Application No: F.)?g(82e4%2:/3REG3 Page 5 of 6



3. Updated Recommendation

The recommendation set out in the agenda has been amended and updated since the
receipt of the latest comments from Sport England (comments received 20 July 2021). The
updated recommendation is set out in full below. whilst the first part of the recommendation
remains the same, the second part has been removed, as there will be no requirement to
refer the application to the National Planning Casework Unit if members are minded to
recommend approval.

To DELEGATE to the Head of Development and Planning to GRANT PLANNING
PERMISSION subject to the schedule of conditions (Section 8.2 of the report)

ltem No: (1) Application No: %OEI%ZQO%/LILQEG?) Page 6 of 6



	Agenda
	2. Minutes
	4.(1) Application No. & Parish: 20/02402/REG3, Newbury Football Club, Faraday Road, Newbury
	1a. Appendix 1.  Agenda Report and appendices for 20.02402.REG3 - WAP Committee  21st July 2021
	1b. Appendix . Map
	2. Appendix 2. Update Sheet for 20.02402.REG3 - WAP Committee meeting held on the 21st July 2021


